
    

 
DOWNTOWN ACTION ORGANIZATION  
BOARD MEETING 
March 20, 2024, 9am 
 
coLAB 
427 Mendocino Ave  
Santa Rosa, CA 95401 

AGENDA  

1.0 CALL TO ORDER Chair will call the meeting to order at 9am 

2.0 PUBLIC COMMENTS 
ON NON-AGENDA 
ITEMS  

Comments from the public will be allowed on all agenda items at the 
time each item is called.  
Limited to two minutes each. 

3.0 CONFLICTS OF 
INTEREST OR 
ABSTENTIONS 

Board members should declare if they have any personal conflicts of interest 
or need to abstain from participation in any items on the agenda. 

4.0 ACTION: 
CONSENT ITEMS 

4.1 February 21, 2024 Meeting Minutes (Attachment 1)    

4.2 Financial Statements ending February 29, 2024 (Attachment 2) 

5.0 QUESTION: BOARD 
MEMBERS 

Board members to answer the question: Do you already, or are you interested 
in engaging with your neighbors about the work of the DAO? 

6.0 REPORT: EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR 

Street level services report (Attachment 3), update on workplan items 
(Attachment 4), District changes and other ongoing discussion items 

7.0 REPORT: EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE 

Report on March Executive Committee meeting and progression of critical 
focus items, including EIFD PFA and ongoing exploration of back up 
conference center 

8.0 DISCUSSION: 
COMMUNITY 
ENGAGEMENT  

Board to discuss March 6 Downtown District community meeting, review 
survey to be sent to all businesses (Attachment 5) and discuss strategy to 
better engage with business and property owners 

9.0 ACTION: BOARD TO 
APPROVE FUNDING 

Board to review and approve options for ongoing maintenance/watering of 
potential new planters in Courthouse Square, and plant replacement if 
needed, which if completed, could increase the street level services budget by 
a maximum of $13,560 annually and increase project maintenance by up to 
$3,200. 



 

Downtown Action Organization (DAO) does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admissions or access to, or treatment of or 
employment in, its programs or activities.  Disability-related aids or services, including printed information in alternate formats, to enable persons 
with disabilities to participate in public meetings and programs are available by contacting reception at (707) 545-1414 one week prior to the 
meeting.  Meeting information can also be accessed via the internet at https://www.downtownsantarosa.org/districtnews.  

 

10.0 ACTION: DECISION 
HOW TO FIX 
REDWOOD LIGHTS 

Board to vote on Executive Director’s recommendation to follow electrician’s 
recommended solution for broken redwood tree lights, for one intersection of 
4th Street, prior to investing full amount of $6,000 into fixing all lights or 
determining whether lights should be removed. 

11.0 ADJOURNMENT Chair to adjourn the meeting 

https://www.downtownsantarosa.org/districtnews


DAO Board Meeting 
February 21, 2024, 9am 

coLAB (2nd Floor), 427 Mendocino Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95401 
 
Board Members Present: Beau Anderson, Leeanna Ausiello-Kane, Natalie Balfour, Pauline Block, Britt 
Cooper, Daryel Dunston, Hugh Futrell, Nicole Gaddis, Caitlin Kurasek, Danielle Nelson, Don Tomasi  
 
Absent: Zach Berkowitz, Chris Denny, Ken LaFranchi, Argo Thompson 
 
Staff Present: Cadance Hinkle Allinson 
 

M I N U T E S 
1.0 CALL TO ORDER     

Chair Hugh Futrell called the meeting to order at 9:07 am. 
 

2.0  PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS (limited to two minutes each) 
Torina Wilson introduced herself as the City’s Transportation Planner. She works to improve bicycle 
and pedestrian infrastructure and is focusing on the bicycle and pedestrian master plan. 

 
3.0    CONFLICTS OF INTEREST OR ABSTENTIONS     

There were no conflicts of interest or abstentions.   
 
4.0 ACTION: CONSENT ITEM    

Beau Anderson made a motion to approve consent items 4.1, January 17, 2024 Meeting Minutes, and 
4.2, Financial Statements ending January 31, 2024. The motion was seconded by Danielle Nelson 
and passed unanimously.   

 
5.0 QUESTION: BOARD MEMBERS 

Board members shared their feedback on the NexStreet team. The response was mostly positive but 
did include suggestions around improving professionalism and customer service related aspects of 
the position. Cadance will connect with NexStreet to discuss feedback. 

 
6.0 REPORT: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

Cadance thanked everyone who came to the council priority setting and reminded the board that 
email comments, which are provided to council members and a part of the public record, remain a 
helpful tool if you cannot attend in person. 
 
She also thanked Caitlin for volunteering for Park-a-Month day Downtown, hosted by the Parks 
Department. She noted that she was impressed with the volunteer effort from the Parks 
Maintenance crew. 
 
In business news, both Bliss Boba Café and Mo’z Café have now opened. 
 
Cadance will include a street level services report in her report moving forward, including a 
comparison to the month prior and moving forward, year prior.  
 
There is a community meeting scheduled for March 6 at the California. The idea is to share 
information with the wider community and engage in discussion about what they’d like to see. There 
will be coffee and donuts.   
 
She highlighted a few items from the DAO 2024 Workplan: 
 

Attachment 1



Work around adding color to Courthouse Square is ongoing. Carlile Macy has drawn up a concept 
that includes 30 perennial planters that will wrap around light poles and a number of banners. 
They’re getting a sample planter together to review with city staff.  
 
The business development piece is moving and final print and web versions should be available next 
month. 

 
The trolley program is moving forward, but there were some issues with the operator and she’s trying 
to get the details ironed out to see if it’s feasible. 
 
She has not yet started on any potential grant research or the management plan review, but she and 
Natalie will be reviewing and sharing recommendations. 

  
7.0  REPORT: EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

Hugh shared that the City’s Chief Building Official Jesse Oswald is leaving, which is a huge loss for 
the Planning Department. 
 
He noted that council adopted the first reading of Vacancy Ordinance last week. The second reading 
will happen next week. Hugh suggested the DAO should identify some properties to share with City 
staff as an initial focus and asked Cadance to follow up with staff. 
 
Hugh shared that the February PFA meeting was cancelled. Daryel added that the city and county are 
trying to work through some of the critical aspects of the program before bringing anything back to 
the PFA.  He understands there is an item coming to the Board of Supervisors next week. 
 
Hugh provided an update on the cinema site and the ongoing conversations around the potential of a 
conference center downtown. Sonoma County Tourism’s feasibility study by HVS has been brought 
forward and identified Santa Rosa Plaza as the top priority location for a conference center. 
 
Danielle shared that while excited about the prospect, Santa Rosa Plaza was not an option due to 
Sonoma County Tourism’s timeline and lack of identified funding. She also shared another project 
was very close to signing an LOI for housing, but not grocery, on the site. . He reiterated again that 
HFC is not managing this project, but providing pro bono support and shared an update as to where 
the project is now. 
 
Hugh reiterated that while Santa Rosa Plaza would be ideal because of existing parking, he also 
shared an alternate location, encompassing the cinema site and the Bank of America site, is an 
option.  
 
Hugh shared that there is interest in supporting Sonoma County Tourism and trying to figure out a 
feasible project, wherever it is located and believes the DAO can have a role in working with the City 
and Sonoma County Tourism to get a project done. 
 
Daryel reiterated that everyone working together is critical and mentioned the possible synergy with 
the EIFD.  

  
8.0 ACTION: SUPPORT OF TEMPORARY SUMMER CLOSURE 

A discussion ensued about whether the DAO board should support the idea of a temporary summer 
closure of the 500 block of 4th street if the closure was programmed, marketed and supported by 
every business on the block. 
 
Caitlin shared that if the closure moved forward, she didn’t think it would benefit La Rosa and was 
concerned about the closure impacting lack of parking and entry. She reiterated that the City would 



need to support marketing and awareness for any program to be effective. She also shared that it 
might be beneficial to focus on public perception before instituting a new program.  
 
Concern was raised about there being enough time to promote such a program. 
 
Nicole shared that this would cause issues with business owners on the 600 block. 
 
Daryel brought up how the City might engage with the concept including the departments that would 
be required to provide support, including Rec & Parks. 

 
 Beau brought up whether Courthouse Square could be better utilized to achieve the same goal. 
 

Daryel asked for further discussion from the board and suggested a simultaneous survey of business 
owners be undertaken. 

 
Cadance will initiate conversations with the businesses on the block and the board will discuss 
again at the next meeting.   

 
9.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 Chair Hugh Futrell adjourned the meeting at 10:36am. 



Feb 29, 24

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1000000 · DAO OPERATING FUNDS

1000100 · Earmarked Project Cash-Poppy 132,259.33
1001000 · District Funds Savings-Poppy 344,229.06
1010000 · DAO Operating-Poppy 5,949.55

Total 1000000 · DAO OPERATING FUNDS 482,437.94

Total Checking/Savings 482,437.94

Other Current Assets
1100000 · District Revenue Receivables 571,800.41

Total Other Current Assets 571,800.41

Total Current Assets 1,054,238.35

TOTAL ASSETS 1,054,238.35

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

20000 · Accounts Payable 41,924.12

Total Accounts Payable 41,924.12

Other Current Liabilities
2300000 · Deferred Revenue - District Rev 474,584.85

Total Other Current Liabilities 474,584.85

Total Current Liabilities 516,508.97

Total Liabilities 516,508.97

Equity
32000 · Unrestricted Net Assets 533,463.37
Net Income 4,266.01

Total Equity 537,729.38

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 1,054,238.35

5:34 PM Downtown Action Organization Incorporated
03/07/24 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of February 29, 2024

Page 1

Attachment 2



Income Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Year to Date YE Projection Budgeted $ From Budget

Starting cash at 1/1/23 77,563.00

District Assessments $0 $360,773 $0 $0 $0 $200,695 $0 $0 $0 $3,035 $0 $0 $360,773 $564,503 $564,504 $0

Additional Income $1,250 $0 $0 $1,250 $0 $0 $1,250 $0 $0 $1,250 $0 $0 $1,250 $4,998 $4,998 $0

Interest Income $0 $81 $250 $0 $0 $250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $250 $250 $81 $1,081 $1,000 $81

Sub Total $78,813 $360,854 $250 $1,250 $0 $200,945 $1,250 $0 $0 $4,285 $250 $250

Cash at Beginning of Month $78,813 $392,766 $348,962 $306,428 $261,645 $417,757 $374,223 $329,440 $284,656 $244,158 $199,624 $146,091

Expense

Primary District Services $28,621 $28,566 $28,833 $28,833 $28,833 $28,833 $28,833 $28,833 $28,833 $28,833 $28,833 $28,837 $57,187 $345,521 $346,000 -$479
Project Maintenance $1,746 $455 $1,417 $1,417 $1,417 $1,417 $1,417 $1,417 $1,417 $1,417 $1,417 $1,417 $2,201 $17,000 $17,000 $0

Marketing $3,000 $1,700 $0 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,300 $4,700 $14,000 $14,000 $0

Administration & Staffing $13,333 $13,333 $13,333 $13,333 $13,333 $13,333 $13,333 $13,333 $13,333 $13,333 $13,333 $13,333 $26,667 $160,000 $160,000 $0

Insurance/Taxes $0 $0 $0 $0 $50 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,000 $2,450 $0 $11,500 $11,500 $0

Misc. Direct Expense $200 $0 $200 $200 $200 $200 $200 $200 $200 $200 $200 $400 $200 $2,400 $2,400 $0

Contingency (3.5% - $19,601) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $19,602 -$19,602

Sub Total $46,901 $44,054 $43,783 $44,783 $44,833 $44,783 $44,783 $44,783 $44,783 $44,783 $53,783 $47,737 $90,955

Account Balance $31,912 $348,712 $305,179 $261,645 $216,811 $372,973 $329,440 $284,656 $239,873 $199,374 $145,841 $98,354 $31,912

2024 DAO Budget and Cash Flow Projection



Feb 24 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget Jan - Feb 24 YTD Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4100000 · District Assessments 47,458.48 47,458.49 -0.01 100.0% 94,916.96 94,916.98 -0.02 100.0% 569,501.81
4100002 · Interest Income 81.26 0.00 81.26 100.0% 104.07 0.00 104.07 100.0% 1,000.00

Total Income 47,539.74 47,458.49 81.25 100.2% 95,021.03 94,916.98 104.05 100.1% 570,501.81

Gross Profit 47,539.74 47,458.49 81.25 100.2% 95,021.03 94,916.98 104.05 100.1% 570,501.81

Expense
5100000 · PRIMARY DISTRICT SERVICES

5100001 · Street Level Services 28,565.79 28,833.33 -267.54 99.1% 57,187.16 57,666.70 -479.54 99.2% 346,000.00

Total 5100000 · PRIMARY DISTRICT SERVI... 28,565.79 28,833.33 -267.54 99.1% 57,187.16 57,666.70 -479.54 99.2% 346,000.00

5200000 · DISTRICT IMPROVEMENTS
5200002 · Project Maintenance 455.00 1,416.67 -961.67 32.1% 2,201.20 2,833.30 -632.10 77.7% 17,000.00
5200003 · Marketing 1,700.00 1,166.67 533.33 145.7% 4,700.00 2,333.30 2,366.70 201.4% 14,000.00

Total 5200000 · DISTRICT IMPROVEMENTS 2,155.00 2,583.34 -428.34 83.4% 6,901.20 5,166.60 1,734.60 133.6% 31,000.00

5400000 · DISTRICT MANAGEMENT
5400001 · SR Metro Chamber Contract 13,333.33 13,333.33 0.00 100.0% 26,666.66 26,666.66 0.00 100.0% 160,000.00
5400003 · Insurance/Taxes 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0% 11,500.00
5400004 · Misc Direct Expenses 0.00 200.00 -200.00 0.0% 0.00 400.00 -400.00 0.0% 2,400.00

Total 5400000 · DISTRICT MANAGEMENT 13,333.33 13,533.33 -200.00 98.5% 26,666.66 27,066.66 -400.00 98.5% 173,900.00

5500000 · CONTINGENCY
5500001 · Contingency - Misc Expense 0.00 1,633.49 -1,633.49 0.0% 0.00 3,266.98 -3,266.98 0.0% 19,601.81

Total 5500000 · CONTINGENCY 0.00 1,633.49 -1,633.49 0.0% 0.00 3,266.98 -3,266.98 0.0% 19,601.81

Total Expense 44,054.12 46,583.49 -2,529.37 94.6% 90,755.02 93,166.94 -2,411.92 97.4% 570,501.81

Net Ordinary Income 3,485.62 875.00 2,610.62 398.4% 4,266.01 1,750.04 2,515.97 243.8% 0.00

Net Income 3,485.62 875.00 2,610.62 398.4% 4,266.01 1,750.04 2,515.97 243.8% 0.00

5:35 PM Downtown Action Organization Incorporated
03/07/24 Profit & Loss Budget Performance
Accrual Basis February 2024

Page 1



Sweeps (981) Gra�iti (76)

Landscaping Tasks (78)

Bulk Item Removal (120)

Asset Maintenance (43)

Quality of Life Checks / Responses (76)

information provided (5)

Courthouse Square Furniture Maintenance (19)

Business Checks (14)

Cleaning of Human / Hazardous Waste (9)

Power Washing (4) Safety Escorts (1)

Month Prior
January 2024

Downtown Santa Rosa
Monthly Street Level Services Report

Data collected via Jia, NexStreet’s technology solution that tracks employees in the field, manages tasks, collects data around cleaning, maintenance
and outreach tasks and helps predict trends in the District. 

Sweeps (517) Gra�iti (47)

Landscaping Tasks (77)

Bulk Item Removal (106)

Asset Maintenance (32)

Quality of Life Checks / Responses (75)

information provided (2)

Business Checks (25)

Cleaning of Human / Hazardous Waste (11)

Safety Escorts (1)

Current Month
February 2024

Data reflects services conducted within the District in February 2024 and shows
past month and same month year prior for comparison.

Sweeps (560) Gra�iti (239)

Landscaping Tasks (35)

Bulk Item Removal (190)

Asset Maintenance (139)

Quality of Life Checks / Responses (185)

information provided (96)

Business Checks (13)

Cleaning of Human / Hazardous Waste (16)

Power Washing (19) Safety Escorts (4)

Same Month Year Prior
February 2023

Attachment 3



ACTION RESPONSIBLE PRIORITY FUNDING ALLOCATED STATUS START DATE COMPLETION DATE NOTES

1. Support Ongoing Launch of EIFD Hugh (PFA Member) High n/a Ongoing 2022
County approved their policy related to all future EIFDs within their 
jurisdiction. Next PFA meeting will take place on March 21.

2. Continue ongoing work with CC, City and County, to improve intervention 
with unsheltered population in Downtown and access to mental health and 
social workers ED / Street Level Service Team High tbd Ongoing 2022 Weekly meetings and strategy discussion with CC, Host and SRPD
3. Adopt an office mitigation/incentive policy (parking; business licenses; TI 
permits; sign permitting; other) in 1-2Q 23 Executive Committee High n/a In Process 2022 Included as part of DAO request at Council Priority Setting
4. Support work of City staff to finalize Vacancy Ordinance to implement 
code enforcement regulations related to unmaintained buildings in 
Downtown core Executive Committee High n/a In Process 2023

Ordinance approved by Council. Cadance met with staff to reiterate 
DAO's support and eagerness to be involved.

5. Advocate for expanded Downtown parking strategy, which could include 
additional garage incentives, employee parking programs,  support around 
enhanced EV infrastructure and programming and comprehensive 
understanding of future anticipated occupancy rates High n/a Not Started

Included as part of DAO request at Council Priority Setting. Sam 
Schwartz is the consultant selected to do the review. Community 
Meetings will be held soon.

6. Work with SRPD, City Staff, Transit to address impacts associated with 
negative youth behavior at Transit Mall High n/a Not Started Included as part of DAO request at Council Priority Setting
7. Support allocation of Assistant City Attorney time dedicated to ordinance 
and misdemeanor enforcement High tbd Not Started Included as part of DAO request at Council Priority Setting

1. Completion of Business Development Marketing Plan document and 
website (SR Now) ED / Ad Hoc Committee High tbd In Process 2023 Website and document in final stages of review.
2. Finalize and complete plan for implementation and activation of SR Now 
to appropriate audiences Ad Hoc Committee Medium $5,000 previously allocated Not Started 2023

3. Coordinate feasibility study and conduct due diligence of potential 
development of Cinema 6 sight into future performing arts venue Chair / ED Medium n/a In Process 2023

Anticipating signed contract with City to fund due diligence period for 
expanded project including BofA site. Ongoing meetings with SCT to 
keep option as backup.

4. Implement trolley pilot program to test physical concept for potential 
future electric trolley as connector between Districts ED / Ad Hoc Committee High tbd In Process 2023

Aiming to raise $83,500 to fund project. Need to iron out details with 
transit.

5. Engage with developers and new businesses to provide relevant 
resources to support their relocation or establishment within Downtown 
Station Area Medium tbd Not Started
6. Address negative public perceptions of Downtown through joint, 
consistent messaging supported by all actively impacted organizations 
(City, HRSA, Sofa, etc.) Medium tbd Not Started

Opportunity to work with City on temporary seasonal closure of 500 
block of 4th to create active community center during summer

1. Oversee rebuilding of Asawa Fountain, working with City on casting of 
panels and installation Chair / ED High dollars previously raised In Process 2020

HFC to go back to bid. Anticipate 6 weeks for permitting, 12 weeks for 
construction and 9 months for installation of panels once fountain 
construction is complete

2. Support removal of vacant media boxes and establish media box 
installation policy ED Medium n/a In Process 2022 Staff are removing boxes as time allows.
3. Work with City staff to get available park fees spent on projects in 
Courthouse Square, Jeju Way and Depot Park ED / Exec Committee High n/a In Process 2023 Proposal with 31 planters and 12 banners shared with City staff.
4. Support projects that enhance the physical connection between Railroad 
Square and Courthouse Square, which could include improvements to the 
underpass and creek trail or signage Medium tbd Not Started

5. Replacement of movable furniture in Square ED Low
$5,000 through project 
maintenance In Process January

Purchased new tables, umbrellas and stands will be evaluated and 
put back out in April 2024 (weather permitting)

6. Work to enhance lighting throughout District, both as safety element and 
decorative, including existing redwood light wraps Design & Improvement Medium

TBD through Maintenance 
Line In Process

Included as part of DAO request at Council Priority Setting. Board 
needs to review plans for redwood lights.

2024 Downtown Action Organization Workplan (approved January 17, 2024)

1. Policy Initiatives

2. Business Development & Marketing

3. Design & Improvements

Attachment 4



ACTION RESPONSIBLE PRIORITY FUNDING ALLOCATED STATUS START DATE COMPLETION DATE NOTES

2024 Downtown Action Organization Workplan (approved January 17, 2024)

1. Develop pipeline of Executive Committee members and potential new 
board members that fill critical experience gaps Board High n/a Ongoing Ongoing

Will identify a few individuals to shadow the board/committees this 
year

2. Review of Management plan to determine whether updates are needed. Low n/a Not Started
ED to prepare review, volunteers needed to participate on ad hoc 
review committee

3. Look into outside funding sources for specific beautification or marketing 
projects Medium tbd Not Started Begin conversation with grant consultants
Staff: Cadance Hinkle Allinson

4. Board Policy, Culture & Governance



DRAFT – DOWNTOWN BUSINESS ENGAGEMENT SURVEY 

March 2024 

 

 

Which Downtown District events organized by the DAO have you attended in the past? 

Coffee & Donuts 

Holiday Happy Hour 

Summer Happy Hour 

Mixer with the Mayor 

None 

 

What is your main reason for attending DAO events? 

Connecting with business / property owners 

Information on the work of the DAO 

Meeting electeds and City staff 

Never attended 

Other (fill in the blank) 

 

How likely are you attend events in the future? 

Very Likely 

Somewhat Likely 

Likely 

Not Likely 

 

If likely that you’ll attend events, what kind of events would you attend? 

Networking 

Informational 

Other (fill in the blank) 

 

Attachment 5



Are you interested in getting more involved with the DAO in any of the following ways: 

Helping to organize Downtown District Events 

Serving as block captain to keep neighbors informed 

Supporting advocacy on policies impacting Downtown 

Serving on the DAO Board 

None of the Above 

 

 

What is your preferred method for communication? 

District Emails 

Attend Zoom meetings 

Attend in person meetings 

Other (fill in the blank) 

 


